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Sandra Reen

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Lawrence, Trey <tlawrence@aaortho.org> on behalf of Lawrence, Trey

Monday, March 1, 2021 11:08 AM

brad@dentalboard.org; brian.barnett@pr.mo.gov; amber.treston@Alaska.gov;
ryan.edmonson@dentalboard.az.gov; fchurch246@gmail.com;
karen.fischer@dca.ca.gov; jenny.alber@state.co.us; chris.andresen@ct.gov;
vito.delvento@dc.gov; Pamela.zickafoose@state.de.us; Jenniferwenhold@flhealth.gov;
tbattle@dch.ga.gov; smatsush@dcca.hawaii.gov; susan.miller@isbd.idaho.gov;
Jerry.r.miller@illinois.gov; cvaught@pla.in.gov; steven.garrison@iowa.gov;
lane.hemsley@ks.gov; robertzenamd@gmail.com; ahickman@Isbd.org;
penny.vaillancourt@maine.gov; alexis.mccamey@maryland.gov;
barbara.a.young@state.ma.us; DitschmanA@michigan.gov; john.manahan@state.mn.us;
executivedirector@dentalboard.ms.gov; dlibsdden@mt.gov;
dhhs.medicaloffice@nebraska.gov; dashaffer@nsbde.nv.gov; john.cafasso@oplc.nh.gov;
eisenmengerj@dca.lps.state.nj.us; roberta.perea@state.nm.us; dcottrel@mail.nysed.gov;
cgoode@ncdentalboard.org; rita@nddentalboard.org; harry kamdar@den.ohio.gov;
susan.rogers@dentistry.ok.gov; stephen.prisby@state.or.us; St-DENTISTRY@pa.gov;
robert.bartro@health.ri.gov; rita.melton@llr.sc.gov; brittany@sdboardofdentistry.com;
dea.smith@tn.gov; wbush@tsbde.texas.gov; Imarx@utah.gov;
diane.lafaille@secstate.vt.us; sandra.reen@dhp.virginia.gov;
jennifer.santiago@doh.wa.gov; wvbde@suddenlinkmail.com; dsps@wi.gov;
emily.cronbaugh@wyo.gov

Roberts, Chris; Gordon, Lynne Thomas

FW: AADB Letter

AADB Group Letter 3.1.21 (final).docx

Dear State Dental Board representatives:

The American Association of Orthodontists would like to bring to your attention a letter that was emailed this morning
to the American Association of Dental Boards by the AAO, the American Academy of Pediatric Dentists, and the
American Association of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons. A copy of that letter is attached.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if the AAO can be of assistance to you in any way regarding this or any other

matter.
Sincerely,

Trey Lawrence

Vice President, Advocacy and General Counsel
American Association of Orthodontists

401 N Lindbergh Blvd
St. Louis, MO 63141
Office phone: 314.292.6525

Office phone: 800.424.2841 X525

Cell: 314.532.5491



From: Lawrence, Trey

Sent: Monday, March 1, 2021 10:01 AM
To: Tonia Socha-Mower <tsochamower@dentalboards.org>; robertzenadmd <robertzenadmd@gmail.com>;
drjasparks@cox.net; brian.barnett@pr.mo.gov; info@dentalboards.org

Cc: Roberts, Chris <croberts@aaortho.org>; Gordon, Lynne Thomas <lthomasgordon@aaortho.org>; Rutkauskas, John
<jrutkauskas@aapd.org>; Scott Litch, AAPD <slitth@aapd.org>; sfarrell@aaoms.org
Subject: AADB Group Letter 3.1.21 (final)

Dear Ms. Socha-Mower, Dr. Zena, and Dr. Sparks,

On behalf of the American Association of Orthodontists, the American Academy of Pediatric Dentists, and the American
Association of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons, please find attached a letter from these three organizations. Because the
AADB does not make public the email addresses for the members of its Board of Directors, and we were otherwise

unable to locate them online, please ensure that a copy of this letter is also distributed to each of the individual
members of your Board of Directors by email.

Thank you, and please do not hesitate to contact me for any reason concerning this matter.

Sincerely,

Trey Lawrence

Vice President, Advocacy and General Counsel
American Association of Orthodontists

401 N Lindbergh Bivd

St. Louis, MO 63141

Office phone: 314.292.6525

Office phone: 800.424.2841 X525

Cell: 314.532.5491



March 1, 2021

Board of Directors

American Association of Dental Boards
211 E. Chicago Ave., Ste. 760
Chicago, IL 60611

Dear Directors:

We are writing on behalf of the American Association of Orthodontists, the American
Academy of Pediatric Dentists and the American Association of Oral and Maxillofacial
Surgeons to express concerns regarding the new for-profit corporate sponsorships instituted
by the AADB and the potential conflicts of interest these appear to have created.

As an initial matter, we are concerned the Directors and/or Staff of the AADB have exceeded
their authority in establishing a new level of AADB membership, the “AADB Corporate
Member.” However, the AADB has already begun accepting new members under this
classification. Section 5 of the Bylaws of the AADB establishes the types of Membership in
this organization, and there is currently no “Corporate Member” level included therein. As a
Member-Governed organization, it is concerning that the AADB's leadership appear to have
made this material change without the direction or approval of its General Assembly, the
body to which the Bylaws grant the authority to “determine the policies which govern the
Association” and “the power to enact, amend and repeal the Bylaws of this Association.”

Further, by allowing membership of “any for-profit business involved in the practice or
regulation of dentistry,” the AADB may invite participation from entities whose interests
directly conflict with the Association’s own objectives—even so far as entities currently
involved in litigation against state board members of the AADB. One such for-profit business
granted Membership under the new Corporate Member classification, SmileDirectClub, is
currently involved in multiple lawsuits it brought against Members and Agency Members of
the AADB. These lawsuits challenge actions the Members/Agency Members believed to be
in the best interest of patient health and safety. Allowing for such conflict of interest

between Member entities, or between Member entities and the Association itself, is unlikely
to be in the best interest of the AADB.

In addition to the above, it appears the Directors and/or Staff of the AADB have instituted a
new level of meeting sponsorship, the “Diamond Sponsor” (at a rate significantly greater
than those of previous meeting sponsorships), which may create similar instances of
conflicts of interest. While obtaining sponsors for AADB events is certainly important to
managing the Association’s costs, decisions to accept for-profit corporate sponsorships
should not be made without consideration for the conflicts of interest that could arise. For
the reasons previously discussed, accepting SmileDirectClub as a sponsor for the Mid-Year
Meeting may have created such a conflict. In particular, the AADB may not wish to put its

Members/Agency Members in the position of attending a meeting whose primary sponsor is
a for-profit company currently suing them.

We hope that you understand our concerns and appreciate your attention to this matter.



Please contact any of the undersigned if you would like to discuss further.
Sincerely,

American Association of Orthodontists
American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry

American Association of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons



Sandra Reen

From: denbd@dhp.virginia.gov

Sent: Friday, March 5, 2021 5:08 PM

To: Sandra Reen; jamie.sacksteder@dhp.virginia.gov
Subject: FW: Dental Scope of Practice & Sleep Apnea Concerns
Attachments: Dental Scope of Practice Final Joint Letter.pdf

From: Kannan Ramar, MD <kramar@aasm.org>

Sent: Friday, March 5, 2021 4:22 PM

To: denbd@dhp.virginia.gov

Cc: Eric Albrecht <ealbrecht@aasm.org>

Subject: Dental Scope of Practice & Sleep Apnea Concerns

Sandra Reen,

Attached for your review is a letter requiring your immediate attention. The American Academy of Sleep Medicine,
American Thoracic Society, American Academy of Neurology, and American Academy of Otolaryngology — Head and
Neck Surgery would like to express our concerns regarding a recently published position statement issued by the
American Academy of Dental Sleep Medicine on the use of home sleep apnea tests (HSATs) by dentists. Please see the

attached letter outlining our concerns; we urge you to adopt language clarifying the scope of practice for dentists in your
state in relation to the use of HSAT.

Contact Eric Albrecht, AASM Advocacy Program Manager, at ealbrecht@aasm.org with any questions regarding this.

Kannan Ramar, MD
AASM President

AAS: | st.sé# ’Madkc:aigé'

2510 North Frontage Road, Darien, IL 60561
P: 630-737-9700 | F: 630-737-9790 | aasm.org
Follow us: Facebook | Twitter | Linkedin



March 5, 2021

Dear Dental Board:

On behalf of the undersigned organizations, we are writing to express our concerns regarding a
recently published position issued by the American Academy of Dental Sleep Medicine
(AADSM). This statement encourages the use of home sleep apnea tests by dentists for the
diagnosis of obstructive sleep apnea (OSA). We argue that ordering, administering, and
interpreting home sleep apnea tests is outside the scope of practice for dentists, and_ herein are

requesting that your board protect both patients and dentists in your state by adopting a policy

to clarify this fact.

The AADSM position states that it is within the scope of practice for dentists to identify patients
who are at risk for OSA and then order or administer diagnostic home sleep apnea tests.
Furthermore, since most state dental boards have no policy addressing this issue, the AADSM
position indicates that this “silence” gives dentists tacit permission to provide this medical
service, which is a dangerous interpretation. This position statement is in direct' conflict with that
of the American Academy of Sleep Medicine (AASM) and a policy of the American Medical
Association (AMA), both of which emphasize that a home sleep apnea test is a medical
assessment that must be ordered by a medical provider and, moreover, must be reviewed and
ihterpreted by a physician who is either board-certified in sleep medicine or overseen by a
board-certified sleep medicine physician. The AADSM position also is not supported by the
policy statement of the American Dental Association (ADA) or by a white paper from the

American Association of Orthodontists (AAO).



An evidence-based AASM clinical practice guideline indicates that the decision to order a home
sleep apnea test should be made by a medical provider only after reviewing the patient's
medical history and conducting a face-to-face examination. The medical evaluation should
include a thorough sleep history and a physical examination of the respiratory, cardiovascular,
and neurologic systems. The sleep history is important because many patients have more than
one sleep disorder or present with atypical sleep apnea symptoms. The medical provider also
should identify chronic diseases and conditions that are associated with increased risk for OSA,
such as obesity, hypertension, stroke, and congestive heart failure. An evaluation by a medical
provider also is necessary to rule out conditions that place the patient at increased risk of
central sleep apnea and other forms of non-obstructive sleep-disordered breathing, which
typical home sleep apnea tests are insufficient to detect. While dentists can use questionnaires
and examine the oral structures to screen patients for symptoms of OSA, they are untrained in

conducting the comprehensive medical evaluation needed to assess OSA risk.

Based on this medical evaluation, the medical provider can determine if diagnostic testing is
indicated to confirm a clinical suspicion of OSA. The selection of the appropriate diagnostic test
— either in-lab polysomnography or a home sleep apnea test — is critical. Because a home
sleep apnea test is less sensitive than polysomnography, it is more likely to produce false
negative results when ordered inappropriately. The resulting misdiagnosis can lead to significant
harm for the patient. Because dentists lack the required medical education and training needed

to order, administer, and interpret diagnostic tests for OSA, implementing the AADSM position

could jeopardize the quality of patient care.

In addition, the AADSM position does not align with the current national and local coverage
determination policies of the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) and the policies

of private insurers for reimbursement of home sleep apnea tests and oral appliances for OSA.



These medical insurance policies also require a comprehensive clinical evaluation by a medical
provider to determine that the test or treatment is reasonable and necessary. Patients will have

to pay full price for the uncovered services provided by a dentist, dramatically increasing their

out-of-pocket costs.

It is for the aforementioned reasons that our organizations urge your board to adopt a policy

clarifying that ordering and administering a home sleep apnea test is outside the scope of

practice for dentists in your state. We encourage you to use as a model the policy adopted by

the Georgia Board of Dentistry, “Prescribing and Fabrication of Sleep Apnea Appliances”:
Depending upon the diagnosis of the type and severity, one possible treatment option for
obstructive apnea is the use of oral appliances. The design, fitting and use of oral
appliances and the maintenance of oral health related to the appliance falls within the
scope of practice of dentistry. The continuing evaluation of a person’s sleep apnea, the
effect of the oral appliance on the apnea, and the need for, and type of, alternative
treatment do not fall within the scope of dentistry. Therefore, the prescribing of sleep
apnea appliance does not fall within the scope of the practice of dentistry. It is the
position of the Board that a dentist may not order a sleep study. Home sleep studies
should only be ordered and interpreted by a licensed physician. Therefore, only under
the orders of a physician should a dentist fabricate a sleep apnea appliance for the

designated patient and conduct only those tasks penhitted under O.C.G.A. Title 43,
Chapter 11. (adopted 04/01/16)

We thank you for your consideration of our concerns. For any additional information or to

discuss this issue, please contact AASM Executive Director Steve Van Hout at (630) 737-9700.



Sincerely,

Kannan Ramar, MD, FAASM
American Academy of Sleep Medicine
President

Carol R. Bradford, MD, MS

American Academy of Otolaryngology-Head
and Neck Surgery

President

James C. Stevens, MD, FAAN
American Academy of Neurology
President

Juan C. Celedoén, MD, DrPH, ATSF
American Thoracic Society
President



Sandra Reen

From: Jessica Bui <jbui@srta.org> on behalf of Jessica Bui
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 4:32 PM
To:

Augustus Petticolas (apetticolas@aol.com); Nathaniel Bryant;
tbonwell@embargmail.com; meglemaster@gmail.com; Sandra Reen; Donna Lee;
Sacksteder, Jamie; kathryn.brooks@dhp.virginia.gov

Subject: SRTA Letter to the Virginia Board of Dentistry
Attachments: SRTA VA Letter 03 10 2021.pdf
Importance: High

Dear Members of the Virginia Dental Board,
Please see the attached letter from SRTA.

Thank you,

Jessica L. Bui

Executive Director

Southern Regional Testing Agency, Inc.
4698 Honeygrove Road, Suite 2
Virginia Beach, VA 23455

Telephone: 757.318.9084

Fax: 757.318.9085

jbui@srta.org

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may
contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not
the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.
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Southern Regional Testing Agency, Inc.
4698 Honeygrove Road, Suite 2 | Virginia Beach, Virginia 23455-5934
Tel. (757) 318-9082 | Fax (757) 318-9085 | www.srta.org

March 10, 2021

Virginia Board of Dentistry

Attention: President Augustus Petticolas, Jr., DDS
Perimeter Center

9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300

Henrico, VA 23233-1463

Dear Dr. Petticolas and the Virginia Board members,

On March 5%, 2021, the Virginia Board of Dentistry Exam Committee met and there seems to be
misinformation about the administration of the SRTA examinations. I want to ensure you and the Virginia
board members that Southern Regional Testing Agency, Inc. is currently still administering dental and
dental hygiene examinations and operating as usual. There was no notification to submit for public
comment for the exam committee meeting, however Mrs. Bui was present on the call.

There was a motion to only accept the ADEX examination for dental and dental hygiene and was
accepted by the exam committee members. Based on the information provided to you and the members
of the committee, SRTA does meet the requirements for licensure within Virginia. We continue to provide
a comprehensive and conjunctive scoring methodology for both the dental and dental hygiene clinical
exams. We also utilize the same manufacturer for our manikin teeth and hygiene manikin models as
ADEX does.

If this motion were to pass, it could potentially cause issues for prospective applicants to obtain a
license within Virginia, especially if they took the SRTA examination out of state. SRTA continues to
administer examinations in Tennessee and West Virginia, both which border Virginia.

Although, SRTA does not administer the examination at Virginia Commonwealth University, we
are continuously working with other schools within Virginia regarding hosting the SRTA examination. We
believe that students should be offered options as to which examination they would like to take. By only’
allowing one type of examination to be accepted results in a monopoly and restriction of trade within the
testing realm.

SRTA and Virginia have a very long history with Virginia being one of the founding member states
of SRTA. Therefore, we humbly request that the exam committee and the Virginia Board of Dentistry

members reconsider and continue accepting the SRTA examination results for dental and dental hygiene
licensure within Virginia.

Thank you,

Dr. Thomas G.. Walker, DMD, President Iéséica Bul, Executive Director

Thomas G. Walker, DMD - President " Charles E. Holt, Jr., DDS - President-Elect
Jennifer Lamb, RDH - Secretary Robert B. Hall, Jr., DDS - Treasurer Jessica L. Bui - Executive Director

11



TIME AND PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER:

BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT AT THE
PERIMETER CENTER:

BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT VIRTUALLY:

STAFF PRESENT AT THE
PERIMETER CENTER:

STAFF PRESENT
VIRTUALLY:

COUNSEL PRESENT AT

THE PERIMETER CENTER:

ESTABLISHMENT OF A
QUORUM:

Unapproved

VIRGINIA BOARD OF DENTISTRY
BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES
December 11, 2020

The virtual meeting of the Virginia Board of Dentistry was called to order

at 9:56 a.m., on December 11, 2020, at the Perimeter Center, 9960
Mayland Drive, Henrico, Virginia 23233.

Dr. Petticolas called the meeting to order.

Consistent with Amendment 28 to HB29 (the Budget Bill for 2018-
2020) and the applicable provisions of § 2.2-3708.2 in the Freedom of
Information Act, the Board is convening today's meeting virtually to
consider such regulatory and business matters as are presented on

the agenda necessary for the board to discharge its lawful purposes,
duties, and responsibilities.

Dr. Petticolas provided the Board members, staff, and the public with
contact information should the electronic meeting be interrupted.

Augustus A. Petticolas, Jr., D.D.S., President
Sandra J. Catchings, D.D.S., Vice-President

Patricia B. Bonwell, R.D.H., PhD
Nathaniel C. Bryant, D.D.S.

Sultan E. Chaudhry, D.D.S.

Jamiah Dawson, D.D.S.

Perry E. Jones, D.D.S.

Margaret F. Lemaster, R.D.H.

J. Michael Martinez de Andino, J.D.
Mike Nguyen, D.D.S.

Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director of the Board
Jamie C. Sacksteder, Deputy Executive Director
Tracey Arrington-Edmonds, Licensing Manager
Donna Lee, Discipline Case Manager

David C. Brown, D.C., Director, Department of Health Professions

Barbara Allison-Bryan, M.D., Chief Deputy Director, Department of
Health Professions ‘

Elaine Yeatts, Senior Policy Analyst, Department of Health Professions

James E. Rutkowski, Assistant Attorney General

A roll call of the Board members and staff was completed. With ten
members of the Board present, a quorum was established.
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Virginia Board of Dentistry
Board Business Meeting
December 11, 2020

PUBLIC COMMENT:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

ADEX REPORT:

CITA REPORT:

BOARD OF HEALTH
PROFESSIONS REPORT:

Unapproved

Dr. Petticolas explained the parameters for public comment and opened
the public comment period. Dr. Petticolas also stated that written
comments were received from Mr. Matthew Glans and Dr. E. Thomas
Elsnter, Jr., which are included in the agenda package; and written
comments received from Ms. Beth Cole were sent by email to Board

members and the Public Participation list and will be posted with the
draft minutes.

Dr. Richard Archer, Senior Associate Dean for Clinical Education,
VCU School of Dentistry - Dr. Archer stated that when the Board made
the decision to accept all Board exams, portability was the main concern
and goal. He recommended that the ADEX exam be the only exam
accepted in Virginia because it is a uniform exam, the Board has input
on the exam by Board representation, it is an interactive exam, and
administered by two different agencies. He also stated that the ADEX
exam is accepted in all other states except Delaware and New York.

Dr. Sharon Popp - Testing Specialist for WREB - Dr. Popp
encouraged the Board to review the WREB paper that Ms. Cole
submitted regarding testing procedures followed by WREB. She also
noted that their scorecard was updated to show if the candidate
completed a simulated or live patient portion of the examination.

Dr. Petticolas asked if there were any edits or corrections to any of the 6
sets of draft minutes included in the agenda package. Dr. Bonwell
stated that on page 21 of the agenda, in the October 23, 2020 Business
Meeting Minutes, the last paragraph, line 7, the sentence that starts with
“Dr. Bonwell” the word should be “stating” and not “state”. Dr. Catchings
moved to approve the six sets of minutes with the change noted by Dr.

Bonwell. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken. The motion
passed.

Ms. Reen informed the Board that the meeting minutes from the two

public hearings held on November 13, 2020, are in the agenda package
for informational purposes.

Dr. Bryant stated that the ADEX meeting was held virtually. He reported
that the passing rate for the manikin exams and for the live patient tests

were very similar at about 94%. He added that the typodont allows

testing at different depths which is not possible in the live patient exam.

He also said ADEX is working on developing a more natural tooth for the
dental hygiene exam.

Dr. Petticolas stated that CITA has not met since the last meeting.

Dr. Catchings announced her appointment to this Board and stated that

she has yet to attend a meeting because her first meeting was
cancelled.
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Virginia Board of Dentistry
Board Business Meeting
December 11, 2020

DIRECTOR’S REPORT:

LEGISLATION AND
REGULATION:

Unapproved

Dr. Brown praised Dr. Petticolas for helping Dr. Carey, the Secretary of
Health and Human Resources, with various initiatives. He then reported
that the Legislative session coming up in January will be a short session,
only 30 days. He said no DHP bills are expected to move ahead and
that legalizing medical and recreational use of marijuana will be
addressed. Dr. Brown also stated that for very potent marijuana,

prescribers and patients may be required to register with the Board of
Pharmacy.

Dr. Allison-Bryan stated that by the end of the day, the FDA is expected
to approve the emergency use authorization of the Pfizer vaccine for the
COVID-19 virus, which will be distributed almost immediately to Virginia.
She stated that 1A classification healthcare providers, and long-term
care facilities’ residents and staff will have priority in receiving the
vaccination, which will be given by CVS and Walgreen pharmacists. Dr.
Allison-Bryan encouraged everyone to go to the Virginia Department of

Health's website to learn about the distribution plans for the vaccine in
Virginia.

Status Report on Regulatory Actions Chart. Ms. Yeatts reviewed
the updated Regulatory Actions. The following proposed regulations
are currently at the Governor’s Office:

training and supervision of digital scan technicians:

amendment to restriction on advertising dental specialties;

technical correction to fees; and

training in infection control.

®

® & @

The regulations pertaining to the waiver for e-prescribing and the
education and training for dental assistants |l are under review by the
Secretary of Health and Human Resources.

Petition for Rulemaking - Scope of practice for dentistry to
include administration of Botox and dermal filler injectables.

Ms. Yeatts stated the petition is to amend the regulations to allow
general dentists with additional training to administer BOTOX and
dermal filler injectables. She recommended that the Board consider the
current statute allowing oral maxillofacial surgeons with proper training

and certification to perform those functions and review the current
definition of dentistry.

After discussion, the Board had concerns about the extraoral
administration of Botox and dermal filler injectables by a general dentist
and possible complications with patients. The Board also had questions

about the specific type of training that would be required of a general
dentist.

Dr. Catchings moved to deny the petitioner’s request for rulemaking at this
time. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken. The motion passed.

14



Virginia Board of Dentistry Unapproved
Board Business Meeting
December 11, 2020

By consensus, the Board requested that the petitioners be notified that

additional information about training should be submitted to the Board
for review.

Adoption of Amendments to 18VAC60-25-40 — Practice by Public
Health dental hygienists under remote supervision. Ms. Yeatts
explained that the Board is voting whether or not to adopt the
amendments to 18VAC60-25-40 as a final action.

Dr. Catchings moved to accept the amendments to 18VAC60-25-40
pertaining to practice by Public Health dental hygienists under remote

supervision. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken. The motion
passed.

Adoption of Proposed Regulation on Administration of Sedation &
Anesthesia.

¢ 18VAC60-21-291(C) - Ms. Yeatts reviewed the comments received
pertaining to requiring a 3-person treatment team for moderate sedation

instead of a 2-person team. The Board discussed the current practices
and guidelines.

Dr. Bonwell moved that 18VAC60-21-291(C) be amended to require a

2-person treatment team for moderate sedation. Following a second, a
roll call vote was taken. The motion passed.

» 18VAC60-21-201(A)(1) - Ms. Yeatts explained this is a request for
modification to allow CRNAs to administer sedation in dental offices
with non-permitted dentists. The Board reviewed the practices of a
CRNA in an outpatient surgery center versus a dental office setting.

Dr. Dawson moved that 18VAC60-21-291(A)1) be modified to allow
CRNAs to administer sedation in dental offices with non-permitted

dentists. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken. The motion
passed.

+ 18VAC60-21-301(EX2) - Ms. Yeatts stated the Board had to decide

whether the required information being recorded should be every five
minutes.

Dr. Catchings moved that 18VAC60-21-301(E)(2) be amended to add

“every five minutes”. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken.
The motion passed.

Dr. Catchings moved to adopt the proposed regulation as
recommended by the Regulatory/Legislative Committee and amended

By the Board. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken. The
motion passed.

Following a break, a roll call was taken to establish that a quorum of the
Board was present.



Virginia Board of Dentistry
Board Business Meeting
December 11, 2020

BOARD .
DISCUSSION/ACTION:

Unapproved

Review Discussion of Clinical Examination Acceptance - Ms. Reen
explained her research and findings in developing a draft guidance
document requested by the Board to require equivalency across the five
regional testing agencies accepted by the Board. Ms. Reen stated that
there is no public documentation available to determine if all five exams
are equivalent. She explained each testing agency’s scoring
methodology and standards for testing are proprietary records that are
shared only with the dental boards that are members of the respective
agency. She said the redacted score cards show there are variances
across the testing agencies but they are similar. She said adopting this
guidance document will slow down licensure and require that more
applications be addressed by Special Conference Committees. She said
the Board is and can only be a member of one testing agency. The
Board is a member of the Council of Interstate Testing Agencies (CITA)
and it is a member of the test development agency American Board of
Dental Examiners (ADEX). She added that CITA administers the ADEX
exam. These memberships give the Board a voice in test development
and implementation by these two agencies.

In response to discussion, Ms. Reen noted that the Board could

establish two policies: one for licensure by examination and another for
licensure by credentials.

Ms. Sacksteder addressed the Board's March 2020 decision to not
accept exam results that were calculated using compensatory scoring
and passage of specific categories of the clinical exam. She said that
she understands that CRDTS and WREB both do compensatory scoring
for some sections of their exams and that there are testing agencies

which give candidates the option of taking either the prosthodontic
portion or the periodontal portion of the exam.

Dr. Petticolas stated that Board staff was asked to develop a guidance
document for the testing exams to determine if there was a level of
equivalency, and that was done. The conclusion is that there is not
equivalency with the five testing agencies for the different reasons that
were stated by Ms. Reen and Ms. Sacksteder.

Dr. Catchings moved to reject the draft guidance document that was
prepared pertaining to clinical examination acceptance. Following a
second, a roll call vote was taken. The motion passed.

By consensus, the Board requested that the Exam Committee discuss
the testing agency exams in more detail, considering a timeframe to
require passage of the ADEX exam, and report its findings to the Board.

Ms. Reen requested approval by the Board to hire a VCU consultant to
assist the Exam Committee. Dr. Catchings moved to have a consultant

work with the Committee. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken.
The motion passed.
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Virginia Board of Dentistry
Board Business Meeting
December 11, 2020

BOARD COUNSEL
REPORT:

ADJOURNMENT:

Unapproved

Bylaws (Guidance Document 60-14) - Dr. Petticolas encouraged the

Board members to assist in the biennial review of the Bylaws. He asked
for discussion of adding a provision to allow emergency action by the
Executive Committee and/or polling each board member when there is a
need for emergency action. Ms. Reen explained that the first attempt to
take emergency action on the exam requirements for 2020 failed
because there was not 100% unqualified agreement of the Board
members so it is important to have a clearly defined policy. Discussion
supported adding a provision for emergencies. Dr. Petticolas asked for

any ideas and said amendment of the Bylaws will be discussed at the
March 2021 Board meeting.

Policy on Recovery of Disciplinary Costs (Guidance Document 60-
17) — Ms. Reen provided the Board with an update of the costs
assessed for the upcoming year, and that there have been no issues
with the current process. Dr. Brown stated that the Board of Dentistry is
the only board in the Department of Health Professions that does
disciplinary costs and he wants to treat all licensees with fairness.

Ms. Reen explained that the Virginia Dental Association was concerned
that renewal fees were paying for discipline costs so they pursued
legislation to have a statute implemented to assess disciplinary costs.
Ms. Reen further stated that the statute is permissive and would not
have to be eliminated if the Board wanted to eliminate the fees.

Ms. Yeatts suggested that the guidance document stay in place, but the

Board can decide not to collect fees for a certain period of time and then
may re-impose fees.

Dr. Bonwell moved to adopt Guidance Document 60-17 as drafted and
to not assess disciplinary costs for calendar year 2021. The motion was

‘'seconded and passed.

Mr. Rutkowski did not have any report for the Board.

The Deputy Executive Director’s report and the Executive Director's report
were suspended for this meeting because a formal hearing was scheduled

to take place in 15 minutes. The reports will be discussed at the March
2021 Board meeting.
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Virginia Board of Dentistry ‘ Unapproved
Board Business Meeting
December 11, 2020

With all business concluded, the Board adjourned at 1:12 p.m.

Augustus A. Petticolas, Jr., D.D.S., President Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director

Date Date
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. Egndra Reen

From: Beth Cole <bcole@wreb.org> on behalf of Beth Cole:
Sent: Monday, December 7, 2020 4:45 PM -
To: Sandra Reen '

Subject: FW: September 11, 2020 Board Business Meeting Agenda - Corrected Copy
Attachments: WREB Dental Scoring and Decision making overview for VA 0ct122020.pdf
Hi Sandy,

I noticed that the information you requested on our scorin
meeting. | am resending it just in case you think it would
version of our score report.

g was not included in the Board packet for your upcoming
help your discussion. Also, because it contains a more updated

Also, in reading your materials | saw in your notes to the Board, a reference regarding membership in testing agencies. |
can’t speak for other agencies, but WREB does not prohibit a member state from joining and participating in other
agencies as well. Virginia is welcome to join and participate in WREB at any time.

I did want to reiterate that our scoring system is conjunctive. The O
however, as you can see from the score re
has passed both of the operative procedu

perative section has a compensatory element,
ports in the attached document, one can easily determine that a candidate
res if one chooses not to utilize WREB's scoring protocol.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Beth

Beth Cole

Chief Executive Officer, Western Regional Examining Board
23460 N 19th Ave Suite 210 Phoenix, AZ 85027

623-209-5411 | beole@wreb.org | wreb org
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WREB Dental Examination

Overview of Decision-Making Approach and Scoring Determination

WREB ensures that all examinations are scored accurately, fairly, and in accordance with
the Standards for Educational and Psychological Testing.' Practices relevant to examination
scoring include the decision-making approach and methods of score determination. An overview
of each for the WREB Dental Examination is provided in this document. Additional details

regarding the Dental Examination or for related information regarding WREB’s Dental Hygiene
Examinations are available upon request.

Examination Decision-Making Approach

The terms compensatory and conjunctive refer to decision-makin g approaches that may be
employed when results from multiple assessments are combined. A compensatory approach
averages scores across multiple assessment scores to obtain one final overall score, which allows
higher performance on one assessment to compensate for lower performance on another
assessment. In contrast, a conjunctive approach requires that performance on each assessment meet
or exceed a standard set for that assessment. WREB employs a conjunctive approach to determine
the pass or fail decision based on multiple sections of the overall examination. For WREB's Dental

Examination, all sections are independent and must be passed at the competency standard for a
candidate to pass the Dental Examination.

Methods of Score Determination

The pass or fail decision regarding candidate performance on each examination section is
based on the final score, which is derived from a raw score. The raw score is equal to the final
score if no deductions or penalties are applied. A candidate’s final score on each examination
section must meet or exceed the passing score to pass the Dental Examination, in accordance with

the conjunctive model of combining results from different tests. Additional details for each
examination section regarding scoring are provided, below.

Periodontics Section. The raw score for the Dental Periodontics section is based on the percentage

of examiner-validated error-free tooth surfaces. The Dental Periodontics section utilizes error/no-

WREB Dental Examination: Decision-making and Scoring
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error grading, where the median grade of the three independent examiners will always reflect exact
agreement by at least two of the examiners. For each error that is validated by at least two
examiners, the candidate’s score is reduced by a proportion of the maximum points available.
Penalties (e.g., unacceptable patient submissions) result in deductions from the Periodontics
section score, if applicable and validated. A validated critical error (e.g., major tissue trauma) or a

finding of egregious performance results in examination failure.

Comprehensive Treatment Planning (CTP), Operative Dentistry, Endodontics, and
Prosthodontics sections. Raw scores for the Comprehensive Treatment Planning (CTP),
Operative, Endodontics, and Prosthodontics sections are calculated by summing and/or averaging
the median of ratings (i.e., grades) assigned by the Grading Examiners for each scoring criterion,
according to defined ordinal levels of performance. As described in the previous section regarding
the péss/fail decision-making approach, a conjunctive approach is employed for combining results
across the different Dental Examination sections; however, a compensatory scoring approach Gi.e.,
summing and/or averaging) is recommended for scoring related tasks and abilities assessed within
a single test. Median grades are summed and averaged across multiple criteria and procedures,
rather than requiring candidates to “pass” every criterion or procedure as if each were a separate
test. Unless the candidate’s performance has prompted a validated critical error, which results
automatically in section failure, it is possible that a small variation from the cut score can be off-
set by performance in other areas that exceed the minimal competency definition, to arrive at a
final score that meets or exceeds the minimal competency standard. The converse is also possible;

adequate performance in one area may be offset by inadequate performance in other areas,
resulting in section failure.

Compensatory scoring within each examination section is consistent with research on
standard-setting methods for performance-based tasks. For example, Hambleton and Slater?
demonstrated that decision consistency and decision accuracy decrease with the number of
separate tasks assessed under a conjunctive scoring approach. Haladyna and Hess® also found
reliability and rater consistency to be lower with conjunctive scoring of performance-based tasks.
They recommend that the choice of scoring strategy be supported by suitable definitions from

subject matter experts corroborated by empirical evidence that demonstrates the degree of

WREB Dental Examination: Decision-making and Scoring
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relatedness among the scored elements. WREB examination committees review grading criteria,
scoring procedures, and criterion weighting regularly. Analyses of content dimensionality and
correlations among graded criteria and procedures are also conducted regularly to determine and
support scoring methods. Dental grading criteria and procedures within each examination section
are highly related, indicating summing and averaging as the preferred approach to scoring. For
example, performance on the two Operative restorations is highly related; approximately 90% of

attempts, historically, have the same outcome per procedure (i.e., both below the standard for
competence or both at or above the standard for competence).

The Comprehensive Treatment Planning (CTP), Operative, Endodontics and
Prosthodontics sections are graded according to published scoring rubrics, that define performance
at multiple levels for various criteria. Each grading criterion is defined at five (5) levels of
performance for each procedure, with a grade of "3" representing minimal competence. A grade
of "5" is defined generally to represent optimal performance, with grades of 4, 3, 2, and 1
corresponding to appropriate, acceptable, inadequate, and unacceptable performance, respectively.

All scoring criteria are available in the Dental Exam Candidate Guide and CTP Exam Candidate
Guide for the current season at:

https://wreb.org/Candidates/Dental/ZOZO_Dental_PDFs/2020_Dental_Candidate_Guide.pdf and
https://wreb.org/candidates/dental/dentalpdfs/202 1_CTP_Candidate_Guide.pdf .

An example of scoring criteria for grading the Preparation stage of the Posterior Class II composite
is displayed in Figure 1, on the following page.

For each criterion, the median of the three examiner grades is weighted to reflect the level
of criticality relevant to minimally competent treatment. For example, for the Operative Dentistry
section, Outline and Extension accounts for 46% of the Preparation score and Operative
Environment accounts for only 15%. Weighted criterion medians are summed to attain procedure
scores or CTP case-level scores. The average of the procedure or case-level scores is the raw score

for the Operative Dentistry, Prosthodontics, and CTP sections. The sum of weighted criteria is the

WREB Dental Examination: Decision-making and Scoring
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raw score for the Endodontics section. Final scores also reflect score deductions if any penalties
have been assessed.
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Figure 1. Scoring criteria definitions for the Preparation stage of the Direct Posterior Class 11
Composite procedure, 2020.

Examiners are trained to assign a particular grade only when all aspects of performance
described for that level have been demonstrated. For example, if performance on the criterion
under review meets most of the definition for a grade of “3” but does not quite meet the standard

for even one aspect of the definition for a “3,” the grade assigned will be a “2,” at most. This holds
for all graded criteria.

Where applicable, raw scores are scaled and/or equated to facilitate interpretability and to

ensure comparability of scores on different test forms and across years. For example, the patient

WREB Dental Examination: Decision-making and Scoring
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cases that comprise the Comprehensive Treatment Planning examination are equated to ensure
comparability of test forms. Equating of test forms must be conducted because the raw passing
score on a difficult form of a test may be lower than the raw passing score on a less challenging
form of the test. Scaling and equating procedures allow for unambiguous interpretation of
comparable performance on each form. Scaling is a linear or propottional conversion to another,
more interpretable, numeric score scale, analogous to converting from degrees Celsius to degrees
Fahrenheit. Pass or fail decisions based on final scores, after applicable weighting, equating, and
scaling, reflect accurately the passing standards set by examination committees and ensure that

candidates of comparable proficiency will be equally likely to pass the examination, regardless of
test form or date of administration,

Conclusion

The scores on the two restorations for the WREB Operative Dentistry section have been
averaged for many years, and at least one other dental testing agency, CRDTS, also averages the
scores attained on different procedures within an examination section, including their dental
restorative section. Misinformation has been ﬁrovided to some State Boards that characterizes
this aspect of scoring as somehow improper or not rigorous, which is not accurate. As noted above,
averaging the scores on the two Operative restorations is the recommended approach for scoring
multiple tasks or test items that are related within one assessment. Averaging the scores for the
two procedures requires the candidate who underperforms on the first procedure to demonstrate
performance that exceeds the cut-point by at least as much on the second procedure in order to
achieve a passing score and instill confidence in an inference of competence. Candidates who incur
a critical error on the first procedure, or are dismissed for egregious performance or ethical
violations, fail the Operative Dentistry section at once and are not allowed to perform a second
procedure. Every criterion grade assigned (out of six criteria per restoration) reflects the Jeast
competent aspect of the performance demonstrated, regardless of higher competence demonstrated
within the same criterion under evaluation. The decision-making approach used to determine the
overall outcome of the multi-section WREB dental examination is completely conjunctive, i.e.,

candidates must demonstrate competence at the passing standard on every section to be successful,
overall,

WREB Dental Examination: Decision-making and Scoring
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WREB continues to accumulate evidence that supports the validity and integrity of its
scoring system but recognizes that some states may be more familiar with an alternative scoring
model. Reinterpreting the structure of a test to alter the pass or fail outcome requires a
comprehensive standard setting process and justification to maintain defensibility> ¢ and is not
recommended by WREB. However, if a state chooses to require independent passage of each
restoration in the Operative Dentistry section (i.e., a conjunctive decision within the test), the score
attained on each procedure can be easily verified on the WREB dental score report. The score
report allows State Boards of Dentistry to see details of the candidate’s performance, such as the
scores for each restoration and the raw median grades for each Operative Dentistry section
criterion. The report provides clarity regarding WREB’s scoring system, revealing each median

score, criterion weight, and details for any penalties assessed. An example score report is displayed
in the Appendix (p. 7 - 8).
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Appendix

Example WREB Dental Examination Individual Performance Report
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Dental individual Performiance Report
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TIME AND PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER:

BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT AT THE
PERIMETER CENTER:

BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT VIRTUALLY:

STAFF AND OTHERS
PRESENT AT THE
PERIMETER CENTER:

COUNSEL PRESENT AT
THE PERIMETER
CENTER:

OTHERS PRESENT
VIRTUALLY:

ESTABLISHMENT OF A
PANEL:

" Moustapha Sy, D.D.S.,

Applicant
Case No.: 199533

VIRGINIA BOARD OF DENTISTRY
FORMAL HEARING MINUTES
December 11, 2020

The virtual formal hearing of the Virginia Board of Dentistry was called to
order at 1:47 p.m., on December 11, 2020, at the Perimeter Center,
9960 Mayland Drive, Henrico, Virginia 23233,

Dr. Catchings called the meeting to order.

Consistent with Amendment 28 to HB29 (the Budget Bill for 2018-
2020) and the applicable provisions of § 2.2-3708.2 in the Freedom of
Information Act, the Board is convening today’s meeting virtually to
consider such regulatory and business matters as are presented on

the agenda necessary for the board to discharge its lawful purposes,
duties, and responsibilities.

Dr. Catchings provided the Board members, staff, and the public with
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
Essence Brown, Court Reporter

James E. Rutkowski, Assistant Attorney General, Board Counsel

James E. Schliessmann, Senior Assistant Attorney General
Shevaun Roukous, Adjudication Analyst

Moustapha Sy, D.D.S., Applicant

Robert H. Gibbs, Jr., Esquire, Counsel for Applicant

A roll call of the Board members and staff was completed. With five
members of the Board present, a panel was established.

Dr. Sy was present with legal counsel in accordance with the Notice of
the Board dated October 30, 2020.

Dr. Catchings swore in the witnesses.
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CLOSED MEETING:

RECONVENE:

DECISION:

Following Mr. Gibb's opening statement, Dr. Catchings admitted into
evidence Applicant’s Exhibits A-D.

Following Mr. Schliessmann’s opening statement, Dr. Catchings admitted
into evidence Commonweaith’s Exhibits 1-5.

Dr. Sy testified on his own behalf. Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director

for the Board of Dentistry, was called as a witness for the Applicant and
testified virtually.

Testifying virtually on behalf of the Commonwealth was Sarah Rogers,

DHP Senior Investigator.
Mr. Gibbs and Mr. Schliessmann provided closing statements.

Dr. Jones moved that the Board convene a closed meeting pursuant to
§ 2.2-3711(A)(27) and § 2.2-3712(F) of the Code of Virginia for the
purpose of deliberation to. reach a decision in the matter of Moustapha
Sy, D.D.S. Additionally, he moved that Board staff, Tracey Arrington-
Edmonds, and Board counsel, Mr. Rutkowski, attend the closed meeting
because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and
their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. Following a second,
a roll call vote was taken. The motion passed.

A roll call was taken when the Board returned from open session, and all
parties were present.

Dr. Jones moved to certify that the Board heard, discussed or
considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open
meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act
and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion
by which the closed meeting was convened. Following a second, a roll
call vote was taken. The motion passed.

The Board reconvened in open session pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the
Code.

Dr. Jones moved to accept the Findings of Facts and Conclusions of
Law as presented by the Commonwealth, amended by the Board and

read by Mr. Rutkowski. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken.
The motion passed.

Mr. Rutkowski reported that Dr. Sy’s application for a license to practice
dentistry in the Commonwealth of Virginia was denied.

Dr. Jones moved the adoption of the decision as read by Mr.

Rutkowski. Following a second, a roll call vote was taken. The motion
passed.
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ADJOURNMENT: With all business concluded, the Board adjourned at 6:18 p.m.

Sandra Jf'Ca'tChi'nds',"lj.b'.-S;, Vice-President Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director

S v s
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UNAPPROVED
VIRGINIA BOARD OF DENTISTRY
MINUTES ’

SPECIAL SESSION - TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL

CALL TO ORDER:

PRESIDING:

MEMBERS PRESENT:

MEMBERS ABSENT:

QUORUM:

STAFF PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

Matthew Mower, D.D.S.
Case No.: 201957

Closed Meeting:

Reconvene:

Lt St AR SRR 7 S 3000 O

The meeting of the Board of Dentistry was called to order at 5:16 p.m.,
on January 7, 2021, at the Department of Health Professions, Perimeter
Center, 2™ Floor Conference Center, Board Room 1, 9960 Mayland
Drive, Henrico, VA 23233,

Augustus A. Petticolas, Jr., D.D.S., President

Nathaniel C. Bryant, D.D.S.
Sandra J. Catchings, D.D.S.
Sultan E. Chaudhry, D.D.S.
Perry E. Jones, D.D.S.
Margaret F. Lemaster, R.D.H.
J. Michael Martinez de Andino

Patricia B. Bonwell, R.D.H., PhD
Jamiah Dawson, D.D.S.
Mike Nguyen, D.D.S.

With seven members present, a quorum was established.

Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director
Jamie C. Sacksteder, Deputy Executive Direcotr
Donna M. Lee, Discipline Case Manager

James E. Rutkowski, Assistant Attorney General, Board Counsel
Sean Murphy, Assistant Attorney General
Anne Joseph, Adjudication Consultant

The Board received information from Mr. Murphy in order to determine if
Dr. Mower’s impairment from substance abuse, and/or mental or physical
incompetence constitute a substantial danger to public health and safety.
Mr. Murphy reviewed the case and responded to questions.

Dr. Catchings moved that the Board convene a closed meeting pursuant to
§ 2.2-3711(A)(27) of the Code of Virginia for the purpose of deliberation to
reach a decision in the matter of Case No. 201957. Additionally,
Dr. Catchings moved that Ms. Reen, Ms. Sacksteder, Ms. Lee, and Mr.
Rutkowski attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed
meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its
deliberations. The motion was seconded and passed.

Dr. Catchings moved that the Board certify that it heard, discussed or
considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open
meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and
only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by

which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and
passed.
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DECISION:

ADJOURNMENT:

Dr. Catchings moved that the Board summarily suspend Dr. Mower’s
license to practice dentistry in the Commonwealth of Virginia in that he is
unable to practice dentistry safely due to impairment, resulting from
substance abuse, and/or mental or physical incompetence. The motion
was seconded and passed unanimously.

With all business concluded, the Board adjourned at 5:50 p.m.

Augustus A. Petticolas, Jr. D.D.S. Chair

Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director

Date

Date
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TIME AND PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER:

BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT VIRTUALLY:

STAFF PRESENT AT THE
PERIMETER CENTER:

COUNSEL PRESENT
VIRTUALLY:

OTHERS PRESENT
VIRTUALLY:

ESTABLISHMENT OF A
QUORUM:

Matthew Mower, D.M.D.
Case No.: 201957

Unapproved

VIRGINIA BOARD OF DENTISTRY
FORMAL HEARING MINUTES
February 26, 2021

The virtual formal hearing of the Virginia Board of Dentistry was called to

order at 2:03 p.m., on February 26, 2021, at the Perimeter Center, 9960
Mayland Drive, Henrico, Virginia 23233.

Dr. Petticolas called the meeting to order.

Consistent with Amendment 28 to HB29 (the Budget Bill for 2018-2020)
and the applicable provisions of § 2.2-3708.2 in the Freedom of
Information Act, the Board is convening today’s meeting virtually to
consider such regulatory and business matters as are presented on the

agenda necessary for the board to discharge its lawful purposes,
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
Dagoberto Zapatero, D.D.S.

Sandra K. Reen, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry
Donna M. Lee, Discipline Case Manager, Board of Dentistry

James E. Rutkowski, Assistant Attorney General
Jamie C. Sacksteder, Deputy Executive Director, Board of Dentistry
Anne Joseph, Adjudication Consultant, Administrative Proceedings Div.

M. Pamela Lima Vasquez, Court Reporter
Matthew S. Mower, D.M.D., Respondent

A roll call of the Board members and staff was completed. With ten
members of the Board present, a quorum was established.

Dr. Mower was present virtually without legal counsel in accordance with
the Notice of the Board dated January 13, 2021.

Dr. Mower submitted a written objection to Commonwealth’s Exhibit 3.
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Closed Meeting:

Reconvene:

Closed Meeting:

Dr. Petticolas overruled Dr. Mower’s objection and informed Dr. Mower he
could address his concerns in his testimony to the Board.

Dr. Bryant and Dr. Bonwell informed the Board that they did not receive
Commonwealth’s Exhibit 3.

Dr. Petticolas stated that on the advice of counsel, since a quorum could

be established without Dr. Bryant and Dr. Bonwell, the hearing would
proceed without their participation.

Dr. Petticolas swore in the witnesses.

Following Ms. Joseph’s opening statement, Dr. Petticolas admitted into
evidence Commonwealth’s Ex<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>